
DRAFT MINUTES 

TOWN OF APEX 1 
TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION 2 

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 15, 2024 3 
3:30 P.M. 4 

   5 

The Apex Town Council met for a work session on Tuesday, October 15, 2024 at 3:30 p.m. at 6 
the Apex Town Hall located at 73 Hunter Street in Apex North Carolina.    7 
 8 
This meeting was open to the public.  Members of the public were able to attend this 9 
meeting in-person or watch online via the livestream on the Town’s YouTube Channel:  10 
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=EvXb77jlgHU 11 
  12 
[ATTENDANCE]   13 
Elected Body     14 
Mayor Jacques K. Gilbert (presiding)   15 
Mayor Pro-Tempore Ed Gray     16 
Councilmember Brett Gantt   17 
Councilmember Arno Zegerman     18 
Councilmember Audra Killingsworth    19 
Councilmember Terry Mahaffey   20 
Absent: None    21 
    22 
Town Staff     23 
Town Manager Randy Vosburg     24 
Deputy Town Manager Shawn Purvis     25 
Assistant Town Manager Demetria John     26 
Assistant Town Manager Marty Stone    27 
Town Attorney Laurie Hohe     28 
Town Clerk Allen Coleman     29 
   30 
All other staff members will be identified appropriately below.    31 
   32 
[COMMENCMENT]    33 
    34 

Mayor Gilbert called the meeting to order at 3:37 p.m., welcomed everyone, and led 35 
everyone in the pledge of allegiance.     36 
    37 
   38 
[SAUNDERS LOT MITIGATION UPDATE]  39 
 40 
 Shannon Cox, Long-Range Planning Manager, Planning Department gave the 41 
following presentation on the Saunders Lot Mitigation Update: 42 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=EvXb77jlgHU


DRAFT | OCTOBER 15, 2024 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Page 2 of 27 
 

[SLIDE 1] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 2] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 3] 5 

 6 



DRAFT | OCTOBER 15, 2024 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Page 3 of 27 
 

[SLIDE 4] 1 

 2 
Town Manager Vosburg said that there could be a difference in the staffing numbers, 3 

and these numbers could decrease depending on how much they are able to leverage 4 
technology.  5 

Councilmember Gantt asked what the time frame was for the ramp up and if issues 6 
could be worked with later. 7 

Town Manager Vosburg asked if Councilmember Gantt was referring to staffing. 8 
Councilmember Gantt said referring to the entire plan. 9 
Ms. Cox said that this should be moving forward now. She said that it could be talked 10 

through how long it would take. She said that this is just an update and it should start in 11 
January which includes a phasing plan and will keep stakeholders informed. She said the idea 12 
is to bring the contract to Council to be awarded when the bids have all closed.  13 
[SLIDE 5] 14 

 15 
 16 
 17 
 18 



DRAFT | OCTOBER 15, 2024 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Page 4 of 27 
 

[SLIDE 6] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 7] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 8] 5 

 6 



DRAFT | OCTOBER 15, 2024 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Page 5 of 27 
 

 Councilmember Zegerman asked about focusing just on enforcement. He said this 1 
could be a budget request from the police department, not something specific to this project. 2 
He said this may be putting more in here than just parking enforcement.  He said that he 3 
would like to see enforcement separated out, and if the Police Department wanted a budget 4 
request, then this could be looked at separately.   5 
 Ms. Cox clarified that he wanted to look at the parking enforcement separate from the 6 
other proposed responsibilities. 7 
 Town Manager Vosburg said that there should be a permanent solution for how to 8 
hire in the future for projects like this. 9 
 Ms. Cox said that there should be more discussion and they break down the numbers 10 
based on what they were requesting. 11 
 Justin Rosser, Police Captain, said that staffing would be difficult to break this out 12 
because there is not the staffing to dedicate to downtown parking. He said that this is the 13 
difficulty of the Saunders Lot project because it affects the whole downtown area, but that 14 
they will definitely look at this.  15 
 Councilmember Zegerman said that if there will be civilian labor there could be 16 
contract labor for the construction period. He said that this is more of a permanent addition, 17 
and this should go through a normal budget cycle and not be considered part of the project.  18 
 Captain Rosser said that they could work on that. 19 
 Mayor Pro Tempore Gray said the traffic enforcement was going to be civilian 20 
position and asked if there was a reason these were not sworn officers. He asked if there 21 
would be any problems. 22 
 Captain Rosser said that it wouldn’t be an issue in terms of parking enforcement. He 23 
said the idea was to solve multiple problems at once with these positions, but civilians would 24 
be better for strictly parking enforcement.  25 
 Mayor Pro Tempore Gray said that knowing where to put this budget was the issue 26 
for Police, and it should be considered in the larger picture. 27 
 Councilmember Mahaffey asked if there was any opportunity for parking 28 
enforcement just for this spot without this budget item, or is it too much of a staffing issue. 29 
 Captain Rosser said that it was possible, but to have someone to be dedicated to this 30 
would not be currently feasible. He said that with the current status of staffing right now they 31 
would send an officer when needed. He said they could handle it, but there would not be 32 
dedicated staffing. 33 
 Councilmember Mahaffey asked if there was an opportunity to do something for the 34 
budget by July. 35 
 Captain Rosser said that they could get something by July. 36 
 Ms. Cox said that the parking team approached as a permanent need for 37 
enforcement based on the revised timing of the ordinance for construction. 38 
 Captain Rosser said that they were looking at the big picture because their 39 
neighborhoods have parking issues as well. 40 
 Councilmember Zegerman said that he would like to look at this separately.  41 
 Captain Rosser said that they would take it back and look at it. 42 



DRAFT | OCTOBER 15, 2024 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Page 6 of 27 
 

 Councilmember Mahaffey asked what the bids were that were mentioned. 1 
 Ms. Cox said Russell and Chris were not here to provide updates, but she would get 2 
something to them.  3 
 4 
[SLIDE 9] 5 

 6 
[SLIDE 10] 7 

 8 
 9 
 10 
 11 
 12 
 13 
 14 
 15 
 16 
 17 
 18 



DRAFT | OCTOBER 15, 2024 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Page 7 of 27 
 

[SLIDE 11] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 12] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 13] 5 

  6 



DRAFT | OCTOBER 15, 2024 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Page 8 of 27 
 

[SLIDE 14] 1 

 2 
 Councilmember Gantt asked if there would be permanent wayfinding in the plan. 3 
 Ms. Cox said that it would not be in place in the proposal in time for the Saunders Lot 4 
construction. She said it would be in the plan. She said that what is being proposed is 5 
temporary wave finding and that it is included in the Communications budget.  6 
 7 
[SLIDE 15] 8 

 9 

 Councilmember Zegerman said that this is concurrent and asked if it would it include 10 
the police officers. 11 
 Ms. Cox said that it is not necessarily Police Officers, but 20 police employees 9a-5p 12 
that they would need to find a place for them to park.  13 
 14 
 15 
 16 
 17 
 18 



DRAFT | OCTOBER 15, 2024 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Page 9 of 27 
 

[SLIDE 16] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 17] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 18] 5 

 6 



DRAFT | OCTOBER 15, 2024 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Page 10 of 27 
 

 Councilmember Zegerman why not include Hunter Street parks because there is a 1 
lot of parking space. 2 
 Ms. Cox said that they considered Hunter Street and Town Hall, and didn’t include 3 
because of costs. She said they could be included, especially as there is the strollway to 4 
downtown. 5 
 6 
[SLIDE 19] 7 

 8 
[SLIDE 20] 9 

 10 
 11 
 12 
 13 
 14 
 15 
 16 
 17 
 18 



DRAFT | OCTOBER 15, 2024 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Page 11 of 27 
 

[SLIDE 21] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 22] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 23] 5 

 6 



DRAFT | OCTOBER 15, 2024 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Page 12 of 27 
 

[SLIDE 24] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 25] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 26] 5 

 6 



DRAFT | OCTOBER 15, 2024 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Page 13 of 27 
 

[SLIDE 27] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 28] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 29] 5 

 6 



DRAFT | OCTOBER 15, 2024 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Page 14 of 27 
 

[SLIDE 30] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 31] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 32] 5 

 6 



DRAFT | OCTOBER 15, 2024 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Page 15 of 27 
 

 Mayor Gilbert thanked Ms. Cox for the presentation and asked if there were any 1 
questions.  2 
  3 
[COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND NEIGHBORHOOD CONNECTIONS (CDNC) 4 
UPDATE]  5 
 6 
 Marla Newman, Director, Community Development and Neighborhood 7 
Connections Department said that Brianne Gill, Community Engagement Manger and 8 
Darla Bryant, AskApex Call Center Manager would give the update on Community 9 
Development and Neighborhood Connections.  10 
 Ms. Gill introduced herself and introduced Jimmy Torres, who is the new Community 11 
Engagement Specialist. Ms. Gill gave the following presentation. 12 
 13 
[SLIDE 1] 14 

 15 
[SLIDE 2] 16 

 17 
 18 



DRAFT | OCTOBER 15, 2024 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Page 16 of 27 
 

[SLIDE 3] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 4] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 5] 5 

 6 



DRAFT | OCTOBER 15, 2024 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Page 17 of 27 
 

[SLIDE 6] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 7] 3 

 4 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked if these trainings were happening at this time.  5 
 Ms. Gill said that they plan to host their first training in January. 6 
 7 
 8 
 9 
 10 
 11 
 12 
 13 
 14 
 15 
 16 
 17 
  18 



DRAFT | OCTOBER 15, 2024 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Page 18 of 27 
 

[SLIDE 8] 1 

 2 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said that bringing the community leaders into the 3 
neighborhoods was awesome. He said that monthly or quarterly may be good.  4 
 Ms. Gill said they were looking forward to this as well and looked forward to seeing 5 
Council there.  6 
 7 
[SLIDE 9] 8 

 9 
 Councilmember Zegerman said that doing the community volunteering more 10 
frequently would give more people an opportunity to get more things done in the 11 
Community. He said sign ups fill up quickly when it’s once a year, and sometimes it doesn’t 12 
work for people with timing. 13 
 Ms. Newman said that they would like to broaden the opportunities for more people 14 
to serve. 15 
 Councilmember Gantt said that Springtime would be a good time to offer more 16 
opportunities, he said the Summer was so hot that they may not have a good turnout.   17 
 18 



DRAFT | OCTOBER 15, 2024 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Page 19 of 27 
 

[SLIDE 10] 1 

 2 
 Councilmember Mahaffey asked if the Town would be supporting this or would it be 3 
neighbors inviting Council members or staff members over to talk. He asked if this was for 4 
specific or general issues. 5 
 Ms. Gill said this would be general conversations, or if it were specific issues, they 6 
could be discussed. 7 
 Councilmember Gantt asked if the Town staff would be there or not. 8 
 Ms. Gill said that staff were invited. She said that it was an option to bring information 9 
from the staff and they could come if residents were comfortable with that. 10 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said that the neighbors ask for Council to come over 11 
when there are issues. He said is there a way to combine these two together. He asked how 12 
this process would work. 13 
 Councilmember Zegerman said they didn’t want to get bogged down in the process 14 
or duplicating meetings with people about the same issue. 15 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said sometimes it would be good to have staff there as 16 
well to work through certain issues. 17 
 Director Newman said the idea is to be proactive and just have conversations. She 18 
said sometime people have great ideas but don’t have the opportunity to talk about what is 19 
going on and to build connections.  20 
 Councilmember Zegerman said that these could possibly be worked through HOAs, 21 
so there could be a broader reach. 22 
 Director Newman said it was not designed for the larger community or formal 23 
communication. She said it was informal, and meant to generate more conversations. 24 
 Assistant Town Manager John said there are instances where there are small 25 
neighborhoods who aren’t part of something larger like an HOA, and this would work better 26 
for them.  27 
 Councilmember Zegerman said he liked this idea, but was wondering about how the 28 
program would be utilized. 29 



DRAFT | OCTOBER 15, 2024 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Page 20 of 27 
 

 Town Manager Vosburg said it wasn’t intended for invitations of elected officials and 1 
groups of people that have asked elected officials to speak. He said that this is for the other 2 
groups and that this would be trial and error.  3 
 Councilmember Killingsworth said that there is annual training that gives people 4 
fact-based information to take back to their community and this is a similar idea on a smaller 5 
scale. 6 
 Mayor Pro Tempore Gray said this is a great way to formalize this process. He said 7 
that it is good for trying to identify trends for the Council.    8 
 9 
[SLIDE 11] 10 

 11 
 Councilmember Gantt asked if the lunchtime discussions could be posted on 12 
YouTube for those who can’t attend. 13 
 Director Newman said that was a good idea. 14 
[SLIDE 12] 15 

 16 
 17 
 18 



DRAFT | OCTOBER 15, 2024 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Page 21 of 27 
 

[SLIDE 13] 1 

 2 
 Councilmember Gantt asked if the scoring matrix could be sent to the Council.  3 
 Ms. Gill said yes. 4 
 5 
[SLIDE 14] 6 

 7 
 Councilmember Killingsworth asked if there was any staff that is being sent to the 8 
Community Health Needs Assessment meetings. She said that every 3 or 4 years Wake 9 
County goes through the process of analyzing where funding may be going to address 10 
Community needs and this broadly includes Transportation needs and Housing. 11 
 Director Newman said that would be great and asked that more connections that 12 
could be provided.  13 
 14 
 15 
 16 
 17 
 18 



DRAFT | OCTOBER 15, 2024 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Page 22 of 27 
 

[SLIDE 15] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 16] 3 

 4 
 Ms. Gill thanked the Council for their time. 5 
 Mayor Pro Tempore Gray thanked her for her presentation. He asked how to get to 6 
the web page for those watching. 7 
 Ms. Gill said that it’s on the Apex website, using Departments tab and then 8 
Community Development and Neighborhood Connections tab then to the main site for the 9 
department and there are different tabs for each of the divisions and then Community 10 
Engagement tab, which leads to the Community Engagement micro site. 11 
 Director Newman said at the top of the CDNC website at the top there is a photo and 12 
there are 3 different links to each division. 13 
 Mayor Pro Tempore Gray asked that Town Manager Vosburg look at a way to 14 
integrate CDNC into the workflow for Public Forum. 15 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said he would like to have some metrics to measure 16 
community engagement trends over time.  17 
 Director Newman said absolutely. 18 



DRAFT | OCTOBER 15, 2024 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Page 23 of 27 
 

 Mayor Gilbert said that this was a great presentation. He asked if there would be a 1 
social media site for this department.  2 
 Director Newman said they would work with Communications to try to get something 3 
out in the near term. 4 
 Darla Bryant, Community Connections Center Manager, gave the remainder of the 5 
presentation. 6 
[SLIDE 17] 7 

 8 
[SLIDE 18] 9 

 10 
 11 
 12 
 13 
 14 
 15 
 16 
 17 
 18 



DRAFT | OCTOBER 15, 2024 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Page 24 of 27 
 

[SLIDE 19] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 20] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 21] 5 

 6 



DRAFT | OCTOBER 15, 2024 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Page 25 of 27 
 

[SLIDE 22] 1 

 2 
 Ms. Bryant asked if there were any questions. 3 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked how 311 works with this Call Center. 4 
 Ms. Bryant said that there is not a 311 because of jurisdictional issues. She said that 5 
this is the 311, but they are not called 311. 6 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked about the online presence of the Call Center and 7 
asked how other people ask questions other than on social media. 8 
 Ms. Bryant said that they are looking at an app and other technology, but they are not 9 
in their immediate plans. She said now residents can do online requests. She said that the 10 
new online technology ERP is implemented, then residents will need to do a resident profile 11 
so that calls and information can be documented, and issues can be tracked to resolution. 12 
 Mayor Pro Tempore Gray asked if there would be a budget amendment needed this 13 
year for additional staff. 14 
 Director Newman said there would not be plans for a budget amendment this 15 
 Mayor Pro Tempore Gray asked if there were options for phasing staff in. 16 
 Director Newman said they were developing a staffing plan for next year’s budget.   17 
 Town Manager Vosburg said they were starting below the projected need in the 18 
staffing plan, then they could bring data back to decide on if they would need staffing or 19 
possibly more technology.  20 
 Ms. Bryant said that efficiency is what they would be looking for. She said she likes to 21 
manage time and efficiency. She said that a call center is different than how administrative 22 
and other teams work.  23 
 Mayor Pro Tempore Gray said that at the time of the study some of the variables may 24 
change.  25 
 Councilmember Killingsworth said that there were people who complained on 26 
Facebook that they could not get through so there is still a staff deficit. She said the town is 27 
currently having several staff step in to help try and fill the gap. 28 
 Councilmember Mahaffey asked if there was an opportunity to consolidate and 29 
absorb some positions. 30 



DRAFT | OCTOBER 15, 2024 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Page 26 of 27 
 

 Ms. Bryant said that they had been considered and that would be a leadership 1 
decision. She said she did some research with Cary and other municipalities to see what they 2 
did at their inception. She said once they have more information, they will be able to know 3 
more of what they need.  4 
 Director Newman said that there is already data being collected. She said they 5 
already know how many calls that are coming in and types of calls. 6 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked if others call going out to departments are being 7 
tracked.  8 
 Ms. Bryant said that there is data on the calls. She said they would be sending out 9 
reporting and trends as they are able to track more. She said that if there was something 10 
specific that Council would like to see, they could provide that information.  11 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said a one-stop shop would be wonderful. 12 
 Director Newman said that was the ultimate goal. 13 
 Councilmember Zegerman said that it would be good to have 80% of the calls would 14 
be handled by the Call Center.  15 
 Ms. Bryant said that the website would be updated to get the correct information for 16 
the residents, to ensure consistency.  She said they would be introducing this to the residents 17 
in January. She thanked the Council.  18 
 19 
 20 
[CLOSED SESSION]  21 
 22 

 A motion was made to by Councilmember Killingsworth, seconded by 23 
Councilmember Gantt to enter into Closed Session Pursuant to NCGS § 143-318.11(a)(6). 24 
  25 

VOTE: UNANIMOUS (5-0) 26 
 27 
Council entered into Closed Session at 5:14 p.m.  28 
 29 

 30 
CS1 Mayor Jacques K. Gilbert    31 

NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6):  32 

“To consider the qualifications, competence, performance, character, fitness, conditions of 33 
appointment, or conditions of initial employment of an individual public officer or employee 34 
or prospective public officer or employee; or to hear or investigate a complaint, charge, or 35 
grievance by or against an individual public officer or employee”  36 

 37 
  Council returned to Open Session at 6:08 p.m.  38 

 39 
 40 
 41 



DRAFT | OCTOBER 15, 2024 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MINUTES 

Page 27 of 27 
 

 [ADJOURNEMENT]    1 
    2 
 Mayor Gilbert adjourned the meeting at 6:08 p.m.  3 
  4 
   5 

Jacques K. Gilbert   6 
Apex, Mayor   7 

  8 
 Allen Coleman, CMC, NCCCC     9 
Town Clerk to the Apex Town Council     10 
    11 
Submitted for approval by Apex Town Clerk Allen Coleman    12 
    13 
Minutes approved on _______ of ___________, 2024.    14 
 15 


